



# WATER CYCLE MANAGEMENT PLAN

## 515 Crookwell Rd, Kingsdale

Site: Lot 103 & 104 DP 1007433 Project: 24 large lot Residential Subdivision

DA: TBA

LGA: Goulburn Mulwaree Council

REPORT No:	20240613_20027_001_0
REVISION:	0
FIELD / INSPECTION DATE:	23 <sup>rd</sup> February 2024
REPORT DATE:	13 <sup>th</sup> June 2024
CIVPLAN PTY LTD ©	2024

CIVPLAN PTY LTD ABN: 49 620 926 114 | CIVPLAN CONSULTING PTY LTD ABN: 79 157 731 912

SOUTH COAST OFFICE: 390 PRINCES HIGHWAY, BOMADERRY NSW 2541 | SYDNEY OFFICE: 152 SAILORS BAY ROAD, NORTHBRIDGE NSW 2063 T: 1800 318 052 E: info@civplan.com.au W: civplan.com.au



#### AUTHOR AND DOCUMENT CONTROL:

Field / Design Work By:	Written By:	Reviewed / Approved By:
Josh Eves	Josh Eves	John Weil
Civil Engineer	Civil Engineer	Principal Civil Engineer

#### **RECORD OF DISTRIBUTION:**

Туре	Report No. & File	Status	Revision	Date	<b>Prepared For</b>
Electronic	20240613_20027_001_0	Approval	0	13 <sup>th</sup> June 2024	Council

#### **REFERENCEES:**

- Goulburn Mulwaree Council Development Control Plan 2009
- Goulburn Mulwaree Council Design Specification 2013
- Australian Rainfall & Runoff A Guide to Flood Estimation 2019
- Landcom Managing Urban Stormwater Soil and Construction Volume 1 (4<sup>th</sup> Edition 2004) known as the "blue book".
- WaterNSW NorBE Assessment Guidelines 2015
- WaterNSW NorBE User Guide for Consultants 2015
- WaterNSW Using MUSIC in Sydney's Drinking Water Catchments 2023
- WaterNSW Development in the Sydney Drinking Water Catchment Water Quality Information Requirements June 2018
- Civil Engineering Concept Design & Flood Impact Sheet Set, Red 23017 Revision P0 by CivPlan Pty Ltd dated 13<sup>th</sup> June 2024
- Goulburn Mulwaree Overland Flow Flood Study

John Weil Director / Principal Civil Engineer BEng(Hons) MIEAust CPEng NER Ph: 0408 581 227



#### **COPYRIGHT STATEMENT:**

CivPlan Pty Ltd is the publisher of this document and the owner of the copyright subsisting in this publication. Other than as permitted by the Copyright Act and as outlined in the Terms of Engagement, no part of this report may be reprinted or reproduced or used in any form, copied or transmitted, by any electronic, mechanical, or by other means, now known or hereafter invented (including microcopying, photocopying, recording, recording tape or through electronic information storage and retrieval systems or otherwise), without the prior written permission of CivPlan Pty Ltd. Legal action will be taken against any breach of its copyright. This report is available only as book form unless specifically distributed by CivPlan Pty Ltd in electronic form. No part of it is authorised to be copied, sold, distributed or offered in any other form.

The document may only be used for the purposes for which it was commissioned. Unauthorised use of this document in any form whatsoever is prohibited. CivPlan Pty Ltd assumes no responsibility where the document is used for purposes other than those for which it was commissioned.

#### Copyright © 2024 by CivPlan Pty Ltd



## **CONTENTS:**

1. Introduction		5
1.1 Purpose and Scope	5	
2. Project Overview & Hydrology		5
2.1 Site Description	5	
2.2 Proposed Development	6	
2.3 Rainfall Data, Catchments & Hydrology	7	
3. Stormwater Quantity Analysis		11
3.1 DRAINS Modelling	11	
3.2 Flood Impact	13	
3.3 Interface and Tie in with Adjacent Properties	14	
4. Stormwater Quality Management		14
4.1 Objectives	14	
4.2 Water Quality Modelling – MUSIC	14	
4.3 Treatment Measures	21	
4.4 Treatment Effectiveness	22	
5. Maintenance		25
5.1 Privately Owned Assets	25	
6. Soil & Water Management		25
6.1 Concept Design Plan Set	25	
7. Conclusion		26

## **APPENDICES:**

Nil



#### 1. Introduction

#### 1.1 Purpose and Scope

The purpose of this Water Cycle Management Plan (WCMP) is to provide support for a planning proposal for the proposed 24 large lot residential subdivision at Lot 103 & 104 DP 1007433 at 515 Crookwell Rd, Kingsdale, NSW.

The scope of this WCMP includes assessment of the water cycle management requirements to support the proposed development and frame the implementation of Water Sensitive Urban Design (WSUD) best practise measures to the proposed development. This will include treatment measures implemented to address overland flow, water quality and quantity requirements calculated from various modelling analysis. The report will include the findings of the analysis and propose best practice strategies.

Furthermore, as the site is located inside of the WaterNSW Catchment Area, this assessment has been prepared in accordance with the standards and guidelines listed in the references on page 2 of this report. Stormwater quality analysis will be undertaken in accordance with WaterNSW guidelines to achieve a NorBE water quality outcome using the Model for Urban Stormwater Improvement Conceptualisation (MUSIC) software.

#### 2. Project Overview & Hydrology

#### 2.1 Site Description

The site is located Lot 103 & 104 DP 1007433 at 515 Crookwell Rd, Kingsdale, NSW and is within the Goulburn Mulwaree Council LGA and the WaterNSW catchment area. Access to the site is via an unpaved driveway from Crookwell Road which is aligned north to south along the site's eastern boundary. It's a rural residential area is mostly composed of farms and rural properties. The unpaved driveway from Crookwell Road leads to a dwelling and associated sheds in the centre along the eastern boundary of lot 103 DP 1007433.



Figure 1: Site Location - NSW Imagery (SIX Maps)





Figure 2: Site Location - NSW Topo (SIX Maps)

The total area of the site is approximately 195.71ha with lot 103 DP 1007433 making up approximately 90.97ha of the area and lot 104 at approximately 104.74ha. The developable land area of the site only (Figure 3) is being assessed for this report, which is 55.47ha. This area is being considered due to the catchment bypassing nearby Sooley Dam to the west and flowing directly towards the Wollondilly River, downstream of the dam. The area is generally undulating and dips at approximately 6-7% falling from the northern extent at approximately RL 685 to RL 670 approximately 760m to the south.

Currently there is a driveway that leads to the main dwelling and extensions of the driveway that lead to multiple large rural storage sheds and silos west and north of the dwelling. Further north, a gravel road leads to rural sheds and fenced stock yards. The remainder of the property is divided and fenced paddocks for different purposes, including sheep grazing and cropping. A paddock to the south of the dwelling contains a bore (ID: GW050231).

There are four mapped watercourses within the site, running to the south and north of the site. The watercourses to the north flows into nearby Sooley Dam and is considered undevelopable. The dam within the developable area is proposed to be retained as part of the subdivision works and all riparian buffers have been implemented as shown in Figure 3.

#### 2.2 Proposed Development

The subject land is currently the subject of a proposed ongoing planning proposal. The current site is proposed to be subdivided into 24 large residential lots of minimum 2ha as shown in Figure 3.





Figure 3: Proposed Development

#### 2.3 Rainfall Data, Catchments & Hydrology

Rainfall on the site area considered to be developed will naturally flow towards the south of the site, and the associated pit and pipe network goes into the natural watercourse.

The rainfall data used to undertake the required modelling, analysis and design has been drawn from the ARR Data Hub and BoM using Australian Rainfall and Runoff 2019 (ARR19). The data drawn from the nearest point to the subject site was a Latitude 34.5625 South and Longitude 150.3625 East.





Figure 4: IFD Design Rainfall Intensity Data: Latitude 34.698 South and Longitude 149.701 East

The pre and post development catchment areas within the site, including impervious portions, are shown in Figure 5.

515 Crookwell Rd, Kingsdale, NSW						
Pre Development						
Site	55.47	ha	1%	Impervious		
Post Development						
Site-Roads	4.31	ha	60%	Impervious		
Site-Lots	51.16	ha	2.7%	Impervious		
	55.47	ha				

Figure 5: Subject Site Catchments Pre & Post Development



The current land is mainly farming/ rural residential and based on the observed overland flow surface condition from the inspection of the site, an average Manning's Roughness Coefficient of n=0.03 was applied for the pre and post development scenario. There are significant upstream catchments to consider for this development.

Surface Type	Suggested n Values
Concrete Pipes or Box Sections	0.012
Concrete (trowel finish)	0.012 - 0.015
Concrete (formed, without finishing)	0.013 - 0.018
Concrete (gunite)	0.016 - 0.020
Bricks	0.014 - 0.016
Pitchers or Dressed Stone in Mortar	0.015 - 0.017
Random Stones in Mortar or Rubble Masonry	0.020 - 0.035
Rock Lining or Rip-Rap	0.025 - 0.030
Earth (clear)	0.018 - 0.025
Earth (with weeds or gravel)	0.025 - 0.035
Rock Cut	0.035 - 0.040
Short Grass	0.030 - 0.035
Long Grass	0.035 - 0.050

Flow across Parks 0.35 0.30 Flow across Rural Residential land Flow across Residential (2a) 0.21 Flow across Residential (2b) 0.11 Flow across Industrial 0.06 0.04 Flow across Commercial 0.01 Flow across Paved Areas Flow across Asphalt Roads 0.02 Flow across Gravel Areas 0.02

**Channels** 

**Overland Flow Retardance** 

Land Use Type	Manning 'n'
Residential areas – high density	0.2-0.5
Residential areas – low density	0.1-0.2
Industrial/commercial	0.2-0.5
Open pervious areas, minimal vegetation (grassed)	0.03 - 0.05
Open pervious areas, moderate vegetation (shrubs)	0.05 - 0.07
Open pervious areas, thick vegetation (trees)	0.07-0.12
Land Use Type	Manning 'n'
Waterways/channels - minimal vegetation	0.02 - 0.04
Waterways/channels - vegetated	0.04 - 0.1
Concrete lined channels	0.015 - 0.02
Paved roads/car park/driveways	0.02 - 0.03
Lakes (no emergent vegetation)	0.015 - 0.35
Wetlands (emergent vegetation)	0.05 - 0.08
Estuaries/Oceans	0.02 - 0.04

Figure 6: Manning's 'n' Roughness Co-efficient (see ARR19 Book 6 Section 6.2.1 & 6.2.2)

The pre and post development conditions have been modelled using a RAFTs hydrological modelling for PSD/SSR purposes rather than ILSAX due to the size of the catchments, noting that some are more than 2ha. ILSAX or IL-CL hydrological modelling will be utilised for the drainage network which includes the grassed swales, to be refined as part of the detailed design. Impervious areas are contained to the existing gravel roads/driveways and dwelling/shed roofs.





Figure 7: Pre/Post Development PSD/SSR – Water Quantity



Figure 8: Pre/Post Development (Subdivision Works Only) Catchment Plan – Water Quality



	The second	1 x T	- AVY							
LOT SON WARKS LOT SON WARKS AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND	WATER QUA		4x1 6x2 6x2 11.3 0.7 11.3 11.3 11.3 11.3 11.3 11.3 11.3 11			and the mattern of th	BIORETENTION DETAILS	AWATER QUALITY MODEL		
POAD OF INSTALLARD		_	0.00	DID NO VIA SINALE In graze metativologi	LOTS 10.8 11 BYTRASS. 2x4COF 0.072% (\$100% AMP TO SHE, FIRIT 3x4COF 0.072% (\$20% AMP TO INTRAS) 3x50% (\$20% AMP		EXTENDED DETENTION DEPTH 305mm EXTENDED DETENTION DEPTH 6 TO BE P	Power		
515 CROOKWE		TOHAT		1	515 CROOKWELL MUSIC CATCHME	NT	VEGETATION SELECTION TO BE CARES, MILLAUE	ENSITIVE CITIES 2018 ADOPTION GUELLINES FOR 13CA JANOUS, GOODENA AND FINEMA PLANTED	STORMANTCR BLORL TRATIC	on Settems R Rocks (2040am)
	DEVELOPMENT	I GI IIYIL			PREDEV		TO BE SPREAD ON TOP OF THE FLITTRUANER AP	PROX 5375mm THOK		
L075 23-34	5.64		-	SHOP O 1925 (1925) MF SHORVERAT O 2025 (1925) MF 6 2025 (1925) (1925)	AGRICULTURE 20079 ha	15.MP	FILTER LAYER THE FILTER MATTERS, SHALL DE WASHED SAND	OF SILICIDUS OF CALCARDUS OF SILICIDUS OF SILICIDUS OF CALCARDOUS OF SILICIDUS OF SILICIDUS SILICIDOS SILI	MEN WHED AND PROCESS	IED NATURA.
ROAD OF CO	160	he-	60% MP	Canada Brook		1204.MP	<ul> <li>SATURATED INTRAULIC COMPLICT TOTAL INTRODUCTION FILL</li> </ul>	TIVITY (00-200mmetry (TEST USING ASTN F1015-08) LITER MEDIA 430mmetry		
1012348 (9-2)	14.110		-	042001 021014 (2105.047 042171/041 010214 (207.647 13.73744 (206.147	DENTARY 0.150 M	50K 507	OPENOSPHOSPHICE CONTENT OF	F FL TER MEDIA 40-gAg		
ROAD OF WID	1128	-	60% MP	AVLUES COF INS.				MADOLESIZIOSTREIDON	_	
1015 (3)17	12109		(SIMP	GROOF 0218% GRON MF GORVENNE 0 102% GRON MF H 702% G 05 14F	in the second se	1.1	DESCRIPTION	PROPORTION	GRADING	
ROAD ICE NO	0766		105.80	H TUDA @ OK INP			CLAY & SLT	- CR 528	-0.05mm	
ROAD OF NO	276	10	25.167	WEDGE O LOOM & KON ME			THE SWO	15-375	0.150.2km	
			1965	1500 CWAY DOLDA CON MF	FLTER: ArtR+Xmm		NEEDLAN TO COMPARE SAND	40.00%	0.25-1.0mm	
R040 02 50	940		SON MP	9/200F 02/10% (\$10% MF			CONTREEMED	7-10%	1.92.0em	
Lons (2484	12.47)		05 MP	SCIENCE OF THE BOOK MP SCIENCE OF THE BOOK MP SCIENCE OF THE	TRANSPICAL LANDA 120mm		THE GRAVEL		2034mm	2.1
man aven	0.60		SON MP		DQANACE LATER 200m		TRANSITION LAYER TRANSITION LAYER			
ADDEDS DRAWAY	0.500	-	60% MP	20100 01724 0100 00			TRANSITION LAYER IS REQUIRED WHEN THE ORA THESE.	ANAZE LAMER IS A FINE GRAVITE, AND IS RECOMM	ENOCO TO BE À COARSE SAN	D, GENERALLY VODer
U05540.4 H	4.015	*	05 90	2000F 0.0726 (2006 MP 2007F MAY 0.0226 (2006 MP 30026 (2006 MP	BIOFILTRATION MED		DRANAGE LAYER			
	0.054	h.	505 MP		DIGHTE HORT MEL	and a second state	THE DRAINAGE LAYTE IS 20mm THEX MEMORY SHOTTED FIFE, SCORIA & HOT ACCEPTIALE.	AND IS RECOMMENDED TO BE 47mm BLUE WETA	DRAMACE ACCREGATE WE	TH ISOme DIA
TO NO GO ET THATS										and the second sec
NOTED SURVEY AS REV DI DESIGN JE PO DESIGN JE PO	SCRIPTION EUMINARY PLANNING P	PROPOSALI	DESIGN	13 JUN 24 THIS DOCUMENT AND USE BY THE	Y LIMITED ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. It is produced by cupture try litt solicy for the benefit of a clost in accordance with the transf of the retainer.	CIVPLAN	LGA: GOULBUR	ELL RD, KINGSDALE, NSW - LOT 103 & IN MULWAREE COUNCIL	104 O.P. 1007433	PRELIMINARY NOT TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION PUR RELEASE DATE: 13 JUNE 2024
NOTED SURVEY AS REV DE DESIGN JE PO PR	SCRIPTION EUMINARY PLANNING P	PROPOSAL	DESIGN	15 JUN 24 THIS DOCUMEN AND LEE BY TH CIVINAL PTY IT UNALITY WHAT	IT IS PRODUCED BY OVERAM PTYLED SOLELY FOR THE BENEFIT OF IT CLEAR IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TEAMS OF THE RETAINER. ID DOES NOT AND SHALL NOT ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR		LOCATION: 515 CROOKWEI LGA: GOULBUR CLIENT: AUMACO PTY L	ELL RD, KINGSDALE, NSW - LOT 103 & IN MULWAREE COUNCIL LTD C/- PRECISE PLANNING PTY LTD	104 D.P. 1007433	

Figure 9: Pre/Post Development Catchment Plan – Water Quality

#### 3. Stormwater Quantity Analysis

#### 3.1 DRAINS Modelling

A model was set up using DRAINS with RAFTs modelling to analyse the pre and post development flows of the site and the on-site detention (OSD) requirements like: Permissible Site Discharge (PSD) and Site Storage Requirements (SSR) calculations for attenuation. The model simulated the 1%, 2%, 5%, 10%, 20% and 50% Annual Exceedance Probability (AEP) storm events with duration up to and including 2 hours, also noting that the 4EY and 1EY events were analysed to assist with water quality modelling and implementation of the WSUD strategy. A conceptual model (figures 10) was set up for both the pre and post development conditions to analyse OSD requirements (PSD/SSR) for the proposed development.

Below are the following parameters for Kingsdale and the subject site:

#### RAFTS:

- Impervious Area Initial Loss (mm): 1mm
- Impervious Area Continuing Loss (mm/h): 0mm
- Pervious Area Initial Loss (mm): 9.6mm
- Pervious Area Continuing Loss (mm): 2.7
- BX:1





Figure 10: DRAINS Pre-Development and Post Development Model Set-Up for OSD Analysis

Due to the development type being a large lot residential land use, at source OSD can be adopted, rather than a dedicated OSD basin. To achieve this, each dwelling will need to have a dedicated OSD rainwater tank (RWT) connected to 100% of the roof gutter, with a suitably sized and positioned orifice plate to control the stormwater outflow. The exact size, level and details need to be confirmed by a competent civil engineering once each dwelling design is finalised.

MENT FOR S
S
L/s/ha
21.24
46.31
55.74
64.48
83.29
95.36
_ _ _

The permissible site discharge (PSD) requirements were determined and are shown in Figure 11.

Figure 11: DRAINS Modelling Results – Permissible Site Discharge (PSD)

Then, in order to calculate the Site Storage Requirement (SSR), the critical storm event, which in this case is the 1% AEP for a 2-hour duration was analysed and the volume difference between pre and post development conditions compared. The results can be seen in figure 12.

	PRE		SSR	
CRITICAL	DEV	POST	FOR	
STORM	VOL	DEV VOL	LOTS	
% AEP	m3	m3	m3	m3/ha
$1_{2hr}$	23491.5	24436.20	944.7	17

Figure 12: DRAINS Modelling Results – Site Storage Requirement (SSR)



In summary,

- Each lot is to provide 17m3/ha of OSD to satisfy the Site Storage Requirements (SSR).
- Each lot is to have 34000L of capacity with a 65mm orifice plate, based on rainwater tank surface area of 70m<sup>2</sup>.
- Each lot structure gutter entire must be plumbed to the inlet of the rainwater tank.
- Each lot is to Comply with the following Permissible Site Discharge (PSD) flows (final dwelling design to be check by a competent engineer):

% AEP	L/s/ha
50	21
20	46
10	56
5	64
2	83
1	95

#### 3.2 Flood Impact

The Council have undertaken a flood study of the subject site and the site is subject to the impact of flooding. The current site flood study mapping is shown in figure 13. 1% flood planning levels to be confirmed in Flood Impact and Risk Assessment.



Figure 13: Flood Depths – (Floodplain Study)



#### 3.3 Interface and Tie in with Adjacent Properties

The attenuated stormwater outlet arrangement from the overall site will be via roadside swales which will outlet via surface runoff into the existing watercourses which run through the site.

#### 4. Stormwater Quality Management

#### 4.1 Objectives

The site is located within the Goulburn Mulwaree Council and the WaterNSW Catchment Area, and this assessment has been prepared in accordance with the standards and guidelines listed in the references on page 2 of this report.

Water quality modelling and analysis will be undertaken in accordance with WaterNSW guidelines to achieve a neutral or beneficial (NorBE) water quality outcome using MUSIC modelling software. The criteria to achieve NorBE are:

- Post-development **mean annual pollutant loads** for total phosphorus (TP), total nitrogen (TN) and total suspended solids (TSS) are to be a minimum of 10% less than the pre-developed conditions.
- Post-development **mean annual gross pollutant loads** are to be equal to or less than the pre-developed conditions.
- Post-development pollutant concentrations for total phosphorus (TP) and total nitrogen (TN) must be equal to or less than the pre-development concentrations between the 50<sup>th</sup> and 98<sup>th</sup> percentiles where runoff occurs.

#### 4.2 Water Quality Modelling – MUSIC

The water quality modelling and analysis will be undertaken utilising Model for Urban Stormwater Improvement Conceptualisation (MUSIC) software using the WaterNSW guideline *"Using MUSIC in Sydney's Drinking Water Catchment"* and specific treatment node data provided by WaterNSW, specifically Zone 1. Figures 14, 15 and 16 show the climate zones, rainfall and evapotranspiration data source used on the model.



Figure 14: Climate Zones – Zone 1





Figure 15: Rainfall Meteorological Data Statistics (Zone 1)



Figure 16: Evapotranspiration Meteorological Data Statistics (Zone 1)

The details below show the pre and post development land use, catchment sizing, effective impervious areas, assumptions, and applications for the matter of water quality treatment. Note that Post-Development (Subdivision Works Only) – refer to figure 17 - only refers to the works to be carried out during the subdivision process, before the construction of the dwellings, as required by WaterNSW according to the most recent guidelines *"Using MUSIC in Sydney's Drinking Water Catchment (February 2023)"*. In this case, only the access driveway composes the impervious area of the Post-Development (Subdivision Works Only), as all the existing structures will be demolished as part of the proposed subdivision. And Post-Development (Dwellings) – refer to figure 18 – is the final development, considering an imperviousness of 2.7% for each lot.

		515 Crookwell Rd, Kingsdale					
	Pre Devlopment CATCHMENTS						
CATCHMENT 01	CATCHMENT 01						
Name	Description		Area (ha)	% Impervious			
Farming	Agriculture		55.074	0%			



CATCHMENT 02				
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious	
Dwelling/Shed	Roof	0.116	100%	
CATCHMENT 03				
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious	
Driveway	Unsealed Road	0.199	50%	

	515 Crookwell Rd,	Kingsdale	
	POST-DEVELOPMENT (SUBDIVISION \	VORKS ONLY) CATCHMENTS	
CATCHMENT 01			
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Lots 22-23	Via Swale	6.454	0%
CATCHMENT 02			
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Road 01 EB	Via Swale	0.628	60%
CATCHMENT 03			
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Lot 3,4 & 18-21	Via Swale	14.119	0%
CATCHMENT 04			•
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Road 01 WB	Via Swale	1.129	. 60%
CATCHMENT 05			L
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Lot 12-17	Via Swale	12.109	0%
CATCHMENT 06	- F		ļ
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Road 02 EB	Via Swale	0.786	. 60%
CATCHMENT 07	ł		L
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Lot 5	Via Swale	2.000	0%
CATCHMENT 08			
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Road 02 WB	Via Swale	0.403	60%
CATCHMENT 09			
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Lot 1,2 & 6-9	Via Swale	12.473	0%
CATCHMENT 10			
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Road 03	Via Swale	0.642	60%
CATCHMENT 11			
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Access driveway	Via Swale	0.583	60%
CATCHMENT 12		0.000	
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Lot 10 & 11	Bypass	4.010	0%



CATCHMENT 13				
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious	
Road 03 Bypass	Bypass	0.054	60%	

	TOTAL CATCHMENT	55.389	ha
--	-----------------	--------	----

#### **Requirements for Subdivision Works Only to meet NorBE**

All roads including access roads to be constructed with roadside swales as part of the subdivision works in order to meet NorBE requirements.



Figure 17: Site Post-Dev (Subdivision Works Only) MUSIC Catchments



		STORIWATER QUALITY MODELLING LAYOUT PLAN	Norm (14)         Norm (14)           Norm (14)         Norm (14)
WATER QUALITY CATCHMENT PLAN Integrit Heregis versions Heregis versions	515 CROOKWELL MUSIC SJEDVISION WORKS		HMENT
000.000000000000000000000000000000000	1.073 354 5 4 Roxi 11 55 0 55 1.075 344 1531 4417 Roxi 11 55 1.025 1547 123	8         No         65.50           9         No         05.60           9         No         05.60	la OSAP Na OSSAP Na SSAP
Long or works and a wo	Notifies         0.57           1.57         1.38           1.564.00.00         5.44           1.571.00.00         5.44           1.571.00.00         5.44           1.570.00.00         5.44           1.570.00.00         5.44           1.570.00.00         5.44           1.570.00.00         5.44           1.570.00.00         5.44           1.570.00.00         5.44           5.550.00         5.44           5.550.00         5.44	0         W         6500	
Solar Al NOTED         SolarY         AS         REV         Discourtion         SATE         Contract Pry Lamits all solars setsions           For all         Discourt         REV         Processor for source in document or source in the point or source in th		JOB IMME: 24 LARGE LOT REDORTING SHBOYSON LOCATOR: 555 CODORIELLING, ENKOLUL, RIVE-LOT 103 6 LINE (P. 107743)	NOT TO BE LUE TO A CUSTOCION PAPENDES
SEE: A1 DRAWN JE ADDRAWN JE		LGA: GOULBURN MÜLWARTE COUNCIL CLENT: AUMACO PYT UTD () - PRECSE PUANING PYT LTD DECEMPTION: NAMINE PROPOSAL DRAWING: STORMWATER QUALITY MODELLING PLAN 1 OF 2	RELEASE DATE: 13 JUNE 2024 JOB-DRAWING NUMBER REV 20027-424 P0

Figure 18: Site MUSIC Catchment Plan (Subdivision Works Only)

515 Crookwell Rd, Kingsdale					
	POST-DEVELOPMENT CATCHMENTS				
CATCHMENT 01					
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious		
Lots 22-23	Via Swale	6.293	0%		
Roof	Via Rwt	0.108	100%		
Driveway	Via Swale	0.053	50%		
CATCHMENT 02					
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious		
Road 01 EB	Via Swale	0.628	60%		
CATCHMENT 03					
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious		
Lot 3,4 & 18-21	Via Swale	13.798	0%		
Roof	Via Rwt	0.216	100%		
Driveway	Via Swale	0.105	50%		
CATCHMENT 04					
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious		
Road 01 WB	Via Swale	1.129	60%		
CATCHMENT 05					
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious		
Lot 12-17	Via Swale	11.788	0%		
Roof	Via Rwt	0.216	100%		



Driveway	Via Swale	0.105	50%
CATCHMENT 06			
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Road 02 EB	Via Swale	0.786	60%
CATCHMENT 07			
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Lot 5	Via Swale	1.946	0%
Roof	Via Rwt	0.036	100%
Driveway	Via Swale	0.018	50%
CATCHMENT 08			
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Road 02 WB	Via Swale	0.403	60%
CATCHMENT 09			
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Lot 1,2 & 6-9	Via Swale	12.152	0%
Roof	Via Rwt	0.216	100%
Driveway	Via Swale	0.105	50%
CATCHMENT 10			
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Road 03	Via Swale	0.642	60%
CATCHMENT 11			
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Access driveway	Via Swale	0.583	60%
CATCHMENT 12			
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Lot 10 & 11	Bypass	3.903	0%
Roof	Via Rwt	0.072	100%
Driveway	Bypass	0.035	50%
CATCHMENT 13		•	
Name	Description	Area (ha)	% Impervious
Road 03 Bypass	Bypass	0.054	60%

	TOTAL CATCHMENT	55.389	ha
--	-----------------	--------	----

#### **Requirements for Subdivision Works Only to meet NorBE**

All roads including access roads to be constructed with roadside swales as part of the subdivision works in order to meet NorBE requirements.

All lots are to have a 16m2 Bioretention rain garden

All lots are to have a 34kL RWT for reuse





Figure 19: Site Post-Dev (Dwellings) MUSIC Catchments



Figure 20: Site MUSIC Catchment Plan (Post Development)



Note that the default MUSIC stormflow concentration parameters have been used for the modelling of the quality measures and are in accordance with WaterNSW guidelines. The catchments are in accordance with the water quality catchments detailed in section 2.3 of this report and refined as per figures 17 and 19.

#### 4.3 Treatment Measures

The treatment measures for the proposed development are:

#### Post-Development (Subdivision Works Only – no dwellings) – Refer to Figure 21:

- Swale
  - Initially, for the Subdivision Works Only, it's proposed roadside swales to treat the stormwater runoff as indicated in the Civil Engineering Concept Design Sheet Set reference 20027 dated 5<sup>th</sup> June 2024, and as listed below:
    - Roadside Swales for the full length of the sides of the proposed roads to be constructed during the subdivision works in order to meet the NorBE requirements in terms of water quality.

#### Post-Development (dwellings) – Refer to Figure 22:

- Rainwater Tanks for Lots / Dwellings
  - 34kL of RWT dedicated to reuse/BASIX in addition to the OSD requirements (PSD/SSR) for each dwelling. This sizing is based on a roof area of 360m<sup>2</sup> per lot.
  - Reuse rates for external use are 55kL/year/dwelling and 0.845kL/day/dwelling for internal use. This is based on the WaterNSW guidelines and average dwelling size of 4 bedrooms.
  - The roof systems are to be connected via the gutter drainage network to the rainwater reuse tank (RWT) with an overflow to the pit and pipe network that will discharge the stormwater to the road.





Figure 21: MUSIC Water Quality Model - Treatment Measures – Post-Dev (Subdivision Works Only)





Figure 22: MUSIC Water Quality Model - Treatment Measures – Post-Development (Dwellings)

#### **4.4 Treatment Effectiveness**

The treatment measures and subsequent results have been compared to the requirements of NorBE as outlined in section 4.1 of this report. The results from the MUSIC modelling in accordance with the approach, catchment and treatment measures outlined are shown in figure 23 to 28 for both pre-development scenarios.

	Residu	Residual Load		
	Pre Dev	Post Dev - SWO	Post Dev - SWO	
Flow (ML/yr)	35.425	49.936	4.562	
Total Suspended Solids (kg/yr)	6341.697	995.029	87.725	
Total Phosphorus (kg/yr)	17.107	6.786	57.262	
Total Nitrogen (kg/yr)	115.624	79.247	21.483	
Gross Pollutants (kg/yr)	45.968	0	100	

Figure 23: MUSIC Water Quality Model – Mean Annual – Post-Development (Subdivision Works Only)



	Sou	Sources		Residual Load		Percent Reduction	
	Pre Dev	Post Dev	Pre Dev	Post Dev	Pre Dev	Post Dev	
Flow (ML/yr)	35.425	54.426	35.425	48.999	0	9.971	
Total Suspended Solids (kg/yr)	6699.068	9563.144	6699.068	1183.914	-2.715E-14	87.62	
Total Phosphorus (kg/yr)	17.057	16.501	17.057	6.847	2.083E-14	58.509	
Total Nitrogen (kg/yr)	114.977	106.571	114.977	80.711	0	24.266	
Gross Pollutants (kg/yr)	45.968	799.264	45.968	4.163	0	99.479	

Figure 24: MUSIC Water Quality Model – Mean Annual Loads – Post-Development (Dwellings)



Nitrogen Concentration Pre Dev SWO

Figure 25: MUSIC Water Quality Model – Nitrogen Concentration (Flow Based Cumulative Frequency) - Post-Development (Subdivision Works Only)





Figure 26: MUSIC Water Quality Model – Phosphorus Concentration (Flow Based Cumulative Frequency) - Post-Development (Subdivision Works Only)



Figure 27: MUSIC Water Quality Model – Nitrogen Concentration (Flow Based Cumulative Frequency) - Post-Development (Dwellings)





Figure 28: MUSIC Water Quality Model – Phosphorus Concentration (Flow Based Cumulative Frequency) - Post-Development (Dwellings)

Note that the new version of MUSIC (MUSICX) does not provide the tool to compare Flow Based Cumulative Frequency Charts between Pre and Post-Development . However, Excel tools were used to overlay the results exported from MUSICX and to draft a comparative chart between pre and post-development (both scenarios) nitrogen and phosphorus concentration. This clearly shows that Post-development (Subdivision Works Only) and Post-development (Dwellings) pollutant concentrations for total phosphorus (TP) are less than the pre-development concentrations between the 50<sup>th</sup> and 98<sup>th</sup> percentiles where runoff occurs, meeting the NorBE requirements for the proposed development. Post-development (Subdivision Works Only) and Post-development (Dwellings) pollutant concentrations for total nitrogen (TN) are less than pre-development concentrations between the 65<sup>th</sup> and 98<sup>th</sup> percentile where runoff occurs. Further investigation to allow the nitrogen concentration to be less for the entire required range will be undertaken at detailed design phase.

#### 5. Maintenance

#### **5.1 Privately Owned Assets**

The rainwater tanks utilising Smart Tank Technology to each lot, incorporating the water quality treatment (reuse) and quantity (OSD capacity) to each dwelling are to be installed and maintained by each lot/dwelling owner.

The legal requirements are to be stipulated in the 88B Instrument for each lot.

#### 6. Soil & Water Management

#### 6.1 Concept Design Plan Set

For details relating to the soil & water management plan and associated measures please refer to the Civil Engineering



Design Plan Set for the detailed design by CivPlan Pty Ltd. The measures have been designed in accordance with the Landcom Managing Urban Stormwater Soil and Construction Volume 1 (4<sup>th</sup> Edition 2004) known as the "blue book". Calculations for any temporary sedimentation basin(s) will be undertaken during the detail design.

#### 7. Conclusion

Water quantity analysis was undertaken, and the proposed development was found to be able to achieve flow attenuation in the post development scenario through the use of OSD tanks provided that:

- Each lot is to provide 17m3/ha of OSD to satisfy the Site Storage Requirements (SSR).
- Each lot is to have 34000L of capacity with a 65mm orifice plate, based on rainwater tank surface area of 70m<sup>2</sup>.
- Each lot structure gutter entire must be plumbed to the inlet of the rainwater tank.
- Each lot is to Comply with the following Permissible Site Discharge (PSD) flows (final dwelling design to be check by a competent engineer):

% AEP	L/s/ha
50	21
20	46
10	56
5	64
2	83
1	95

In accordance with the WaterNSW guideline, NorBE Assessment Guidelines 2015, it has been demonstrated that the NorBE criteria for water quality can be achieved through the use of treatment measures that are sympathetic to the nature of the planning proposal.

The following NorBE criteria have been met, and in the case of the treatment measures modelled and analysed,:

- The post-development mean annual pollutant loads for total nitrogen (TN), total phosphorus (TP) and total suspended solids (TSS) are to be a minimum of 10% less than the pre-developed conditions.
- Post-development mean annual gross pollutant loads are to be equal to or less than the pre-developed conditions.
- Post-development (Subdivision Works Only) and Post-development (Dwellings) pollutant concentrations for total phosphorus (TP) are less than the pre-development concentrations between the 50<sup>th</sup> and 98<sup>th</sup> percentiles where runoff occurs, meeting the NorBE requirements for the proposed development. Post-development (Subdivision Works Only) and Post-development (Dwellings) pollutant concentrations for total nitrogen (TN) are less than pre-development concentrations between the 60<sup>th</sup> and 98<sup>th</sup> percentile where runoff occurs. Further investigation to allow the nitrogen concentration to be less for the entire range will be undertaken at detailed design phase.
- It's been shown that all the NorBE requirements have been met for both post-development scenarios (Subdivision Works Only and after the construction of the dwellings for each lot), according to the WaterNSW Guidelines for water quality analysis and measures modelled using MUSIC.

